
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA                           CITY COUNCIL MEETING & 
 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS                            PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA 

 

 

November 01, 2016  9:00 am 
 

1. Call to Order by Mayor Jan J. Moore 
 

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance by Councilman Sam Jones 
 

3. Recognitions/Public Presentations  
A) Recognition of Employee of the Quarter 
B) Recognition of Employee Safety and Advisory Committee 

 
4. Public Comments (Agenda Item): 

 
5. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 
a) 10-18-2016 Council Minutes 
b) 10-25-2016 Called Council Minutes 

 
6. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to approve Resolution 2016-37: A 

Resolution to Abandon and Dispose of a Portion of Right of Way on American Way. 
 

7. Consideration of a Motion to Approve Resolution 2016-38: A Resolution authorizing the 
opening of a separate bank account for the 2016 Community Development Block Grant. 

 
8. Consideration of a Motion to approve Resolution 2016-39: A Resolution to hereby 

further amend the Classification and Compensation plan as follows, that the 
Administration administrative assistant position is hereby reclassified to an Executive 
Assistant position and that the Planning & Development Department is creating the 
position of Keep Statesboro- Bulloch Beautiful (KSBB) Coordinator. 
 

9. Consideration of a Motion to award a Contract to Y-Delta Inc. in the amount of 
$47,153.14 for the installation of the electrical and control components for the Burnett 
Liquid Lime System, as well as install equipment provided by others. The Project number 
is WWD-162 and is funded from Water/Sewer Income. 

 
10. Consideration of a Motion to award a contract to Aqua-Aerobics Systems, Inc. in the 

amount of $53,614.08 for a "Sole Source Purchase" of 324 Filter Cloth Socks and 
miscellaneous other parts to replace all filter fabric on four Filter Units. The Project 
number is WWD-160 with $60,000.00 budgeted and is to be funded from Water/Sewer 
Operating Income. 

 
11. Other Business from City Council 

 
 



 
 

12. City Managers Comments 
A) A discussion regarding an ordinance amending Chapter 42 of the Statesboro Code of 

Ordinances (Fire Protection and Prevention).   
 

13. Public Comments (General) 
A) Bobby Simmons request to speak with Council regarding storm water 

 
14. Consideration of a Motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss “Personnel Matters”   

and/or “Potential Litigation” in accordance with O.C.G.A.§50-14-3 (2012) 
 

15. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 



 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
Council Minutes 
October 18, 2016 

 
A regular meeting of the Statesboro City Council was held on October 18th, 2016 at 5:30p.m. in 
the Council Chambers at City Hall. Present were Mayor Jan J. Moore, Council Members: Phil 
Boyum, Sam Lee Jones, Jeff Yawn and John Riggs.  Also present were City Manager Randy 
Wetmore, Deputy City Manager Robert Cheshire, City Clerk Sue Starling and City Attorney 
Alvin Leaphart. Councilman Travis Chance was absent.    
The meeting was called to Order by Mayor Jan J. Moore 
 
The Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance was given by Councilman Phil Boyum 
 
Public Comments (Agenda Item): None 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 
a) 09-28-2016 Called Council Minutes 
b) 10-04-2016 Council Minutes 

 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to approve the consent 
agenda in its entirety. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Riggs voted in favor of the motion. 
The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Mayor Moore asked Deputy City Manager Robert Cheshire to give an update on how the 
cleanup was going after Hurricane Matthew. She also wanted to thank all those who were there 
to assist during the storm. Mr. Cheshire stated it would take several months to completely get 
everything cleaned up and Bulloch County was awarded full FEMA Disaster Assistance. Interim 
Police Chief Rob Bryan complimented the Storm water department as there was no flooding 
visible in the areas that would usually flood. 
 
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve Alcohol License Applications: 

A)  Eagle Creek Brewing Company LLC  
      John Franklin Dismuke 

         106 Savannah Avenue 
           Statesboro, Ga. 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to open the public hearing. 
Franklin Dismuke spoke in favor of the request. Police Captain James Winskey stated there were 
no objections to the request. No one spoke against the request. 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to open the public hearing. 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded y Councilman Boyum to approve the application 
for Eagle Creek Brewing Company, LLC. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Riggs voted in 
favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 



 
 

 
B) Shenanigans  

        James Peery (New Owner)  
           1 University Plaza 
            Statesboro, Ga. 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to open the public hearing. 
James Peery and Attorney Wes Taulbee, representing Mr. Peery was present. Mr. Taulbee spoke 
in favor of the request. Fire Chief Time Grams and Director of Planning and Zoning Frank Neal 
had no objections to the request. Detective Winskey stated his concerns as Mr. Peery answered 
the questions regarding these concerns. Mr. Peery also stated the establishment has become a 21 
years of age and up. No one spoke against the request. 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to close the public hearing. 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to approve the application for 
Shenanigans with the condition that the establishment is for age 21 and up. Councilman Boyum, 
Jones, Yawn and Riggs voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # DSDA 16-
09-001: First Baptist Church of Statesboro requests the demolition of a structure located at 
24 East Olliff Street, a property located within the boundaries of the Downtown District. 
Article XXX Section 3003 of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance requires a finding of 
necessity for the demolition of structures deemed worthy of preservation by City Council 
(Tax Parcel # S27 000045 000). 
 
Councilman Jones made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to open the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Riggs voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by 
a 4-0 vote. 
A representative from First Baptist Church spoke in favor of the request. No one spoke against 
the request. 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to close the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Riggs voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by 
a 4-0 vote. 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to approve APPLICATION 
# DSDA 16-09-001: First Baptist Church of Statesboro requests the demolition of a structure 
located at 24 East Olliff Street, a property located within the boundaries of the Downtown 
District. Article XXX Section 3003 of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance requires a finding of 
necessity for the demolition of structures deemed worthy of preservation by City Council (Tax 
Parcel # S27 000045 000). Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Riggs voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # DSDA 16-
09-002: First Baptist Church of Statesboro requests the demolition of a structure located at 
206 Oak Street, a property located within the boundaries of the Downtown District. Article 
XXX Section 3003 of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance requires a finding of necessity for 
the demolition of structures deemed worthy of preservation by City Council (Tax Parcel # 
S28 000001 000). 
 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to open the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Riggs voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by 
a 4-0 vote. 
No one spoke for or against the request. 
Councilman Jones made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to close the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Riggs voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by 
a 4-0 vote. 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to approve APPLICATION 
# DSDA 16-09-002: First Baptist Church of Statesboro requests the demolition of a structure 
located at 206 Oak Street, a property located within the boundaries of the Downtown District. 
Article XXX Section 3003 of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance requires a finding of necessity for 
the demolition of structures deemed worthy of preservation by City Council (Tax Parcel # S28 
000001 000). Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Riggs voted in favor of the motion. The 
motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # DSDA 16-
09-003: The Downtown Statesboro Development Authority requests the demolition of a 
structure located at 9 West Inman Street (listed as 11 West Inman Street), a property 
located within the boundaries of the Downtown District. Article XXX Section 3003 of the 
Statesboro Zoning Ordinance requires a finding of necessity for the demolition of 
structures deemed worthy of preservation by City Council (Tax Parcel # S19 000040 000). 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to open the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Riggs voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by 
a 4-0 vote. 
Director of the DSDA Allen Muldrew spoke in favor of the request. No one spoke against the 
request.  
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to close the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Riggs voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by 
a 4-0 vote. 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to approve APPLICATION # 
DSDA 16-09-003: The Downtown Statesboro Development Authority requests the demolition of 
a structure located at 9 West Inman Street (listed as 11 West Inman Street), a property located 
within the boundaries of the Downtown District. Article XXX Section 3003 of the Statesboro 
Zoning Ordinance requires a finding of necessity for the demolition of structures deemed worthy 
of preservation by City Council (Tax Parcel # S19 000040 000). Councilman Boyum, Jones, 
Yawn and Riggs voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
 



 
 

Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # CUV 16-08-
01: Justine Taylor requests a conditional use variance from Article V of the Statesboro 
Zoning Ordinance for .34 acres of property located at 18 Carmel Drive to utilize the 
property as a community living arrangement facility (Tax Parcel # S51 000064A 000). 
 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to open the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Riggs voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by 
a 4-0 vote. 
Frances Johnson, on behalf of Justin Taylor, spoke in favor of the request. 
No one spoke against the request. 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to close the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Riggs voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by 
a 4-0 vote. 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to approve APPLICATION # 
CUV 16-08-01: Justine Taylor requests a conditional use variance from Article V of the 
Statesboro Zoning Ordinance for .34 acres of property located at 18 Carmel Drive to utilize the 
property as a community living arrangement facility (Tax Parcel # S51 000064A 000) with the 
conditions as recommended by the Planning Commission staff. 
 
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # V 16-08-02: 
John Ray Hendley requests a variance from Article XV (Signs) Section 1509(C) Table 3 of 
the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance regarding the minimum 5’ setback requirement for a 
sign located at 30 West Inman Street (Tax Parcel # S19 000050 000). 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to open the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Riggs voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by 
a 4-0 vote. 
Brian Davis, representing Hendley Properties, spoke in favor of the request. No one spoke 
against the request. 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to close the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Riggs voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by 
a 4-0 vote. 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to approve APPLICATION 
# V 16-08-02: John Ray Hendley requests a variance from Article XV (Signs) Section 1509(C) 
Table 3 of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance regarding the minimum 5’ setback requirement for a 
sign located at 30 West Inman Street (Tax Parcel # S19 000050 000). Councilman Boyum, 
Jones, Yawn and Riggs voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # SUB 16-09-
01: RDJ, LLC requests preliminary plat approval for an 83-lot subdivision for phases II 
and III of the Whispering Pines subdivision (Tax Parcel # MS42 000008 000). 
 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to open the public hearing. 
Fire Chief Tim Grams stated his concern was having only one road to be used for entering and 
exiting the property. He stated if the road became blocked, there would be no other way to enter 
the property in case of an emergency. Ronnie Pope and Don Lanier, owners of the property, were 
present. Mr. Pope spoke in favor of the request. David Hendrix of Maxwell Reddick also spoke 
in favor of the request  Ronnie Shaw of the Statesboro Fire Department stated the entrance 
needed to be wider. He also stated the extension of the entrance doesn’t necessarily have to be 
paved but does need to be wider to accommodate another vehicle such as the fire truck. Darla 
Elliott, a resident of the neighborhood, spoke in favor of the request. Fire Chief Time Grams 
stated he was not in favor of the request but would support a request to widen the existing 
entrance.  
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to close the public 
hearing. 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to approve APPLICATION # 
SUB 16-09-01: RDJ, LLC requests preliminary plat approval for an 83-lot subdivision for phases 
II and III of the Whispering Pines subdivision (Tax Parcel # MS42 000008 000) with the 
recommendations from the Planning Commission staff. Councilman Jones, Yawn and Riggs 
voted in favor of the motion. Councilman Boyum stated he was not against development but 
smart decisions have to be made for later down the road. The motion carried by a 4-1 vote. 
Councilman Boyum voted against the request. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Approve ORDINANCE 2016-09; An Ordinance regarding 
the water and sewer billing, termination of service for nonpayment, and billing 
adjustments. (Fee Credit for elderly/low income) 
 
Councilman Jones made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to approve ORDINANCE 
2016-09; An Ordinance regarding water and sewer billing, termination of service for 
nonpayment, and billing adjustments. (Fee Credit for elderly/low income) Councilman Boyum, 
Jones, Yawn and Riggs voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Riggs voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by 
a 4-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Approve ORDINANCE 2016-10: An Ordinance Amending 
Chapter 66 of the Statesboro Code of Ordinances (Solid Waste) (Fee Credit for elderly/low 
income) 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to approve ORDINANCE 
2016-10: An Ordinance Amending Chapter 66 of the Statesboro Code of Ordinances (Solid 
Waste) (Fee Credit for elderly/low income). Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Riggs voted 
in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
 



 
 

 Consideration of a Motion to Approve Ordinance 2016-11: An Ordinance Amending 
Article 2 (Authorities, Boards and Commissions) of Chapter 2 (Administration) of the 
Statesboro Code of Ordinances. (Keep Statesboro-Bulloch Beautiful Advisory Board) 
 
Georgia House of Representative Jan Tankersley and Executive Director of the Keep Statesboro-
Bulloch Beautiful Advisory Board presented a $10,000.00 to the City for the “Keep Statesboro-
Bulloch Beautiful” Committee.  
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to approve Ordinance 2016-
11: An Ordinance Amending Article 2 (Authorities, Boards and Commissions) of Chapter 2 
(Administration) of the Statesboro Code of Ordinances (Keep Statesboro-Bulloch Beautiful 
Advisory Board). Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Riggs voted in favor of the motion. The 
motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Approve an Intergovernmental Agreement between the City 
and the DSDA for the use of a city vehicle 
 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to approve an 
Intergovernmental Agreement between the City and the DSDA for the use of a city vehicle. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Riggs voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by 
a 4-0 vote. 
 
Other Business from City Council 
 
Councilman Riggs restated his appreciation for all the efforts by everyone during the storm. 
 
City Managers Comments 
 
Interim Police Chief Rob Bryan updated Council regarding the body cameras for the Police 
Officers. The program should be in operation by mid-December. 
 
Director of Human Resource Jeff Grant updated Council on the Police Chief position. He stated 
that 2 search firms have been chosen as finalists. A Called Council Meeting will be held on 
October 25, 2016 at 4:00 pm for Mayor and Council Members to hear their proposals. 
 
Public Comments (General): None 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 
 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to adjourn the meeting. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Riggs voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by 
a 4-0 vote. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:40 pm. 



 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
Called Council Minutes 

November 25, 2016 

 
A Called Meeting of the Statesboro City Council was held on November 25th, 2016 at 4:00p.m. 
in the Council Chambers at City Hall. Present were Mayor Jan J. Moore, Council Members: Phil 
Boyum, Sam Lee Jones, Jeff Yawn, John Riggs and Travis Chance.  Also present were City 
Manager Randy Wetmore, Deputy City Manager Robert Cheshire, City Clerk Sue Starling and 
City Attorney Alvin Leaphart. 
Councilman Boyum joined the meeting at 4:30 pm. 
 
 The meeting was called to order by Mayor Jan Moore 
 
Presentation of Proposals for the Evaluation and Recruitment of Police Chief 
 
Director of Human Resource Jeff Grant updated Council on the process for selecting a search 
firm for recruiting a Police Chief. Mr. Grant stated there were 2 finalists chosen from the 7 
applications that were received in response to the RP’s. The finalists were Development 
Associates LLC and Waters & Company, a Springsted Company. 
Stephen Strauss with Development Associates LLC presented his proposal thru skype since he 
could not attend the meeting in person. Miguel Ozuna, an Associate representing the Waters and 
Company presented the proposal. 
Councilman Sam Jones left the meeting at 5:15 pm. 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to authorize the Mayor to   
negotiate and execute a contract with Developmental Associates LLC for the purpose of 
recruiting candidates for the City of Statesboro Police Chief in an amount not to exceed 
$30,000.00. Councilman Boyum, Yawn, Riggs and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The 
motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to adjourn the meeting. 
Councilman Boyum, Yawn, Riggs and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote.    
The meeting was adjourned at 5:20 pm. 



 

 

P.O. Box 348                                                                                                                                  Phone: 912.764.0655                         
Statesboro, GA 30459                                                                                                                    Fax: 912.764.0664 

engineering@statesboroga.gov 

City of Statesboro 

Office of City Engineer 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
To: Alvin Leaphart, City Attorney 
From: Brad Deal, P.E., City Engineer 
Re: Consideration of a Request to Abandon a Portion of Right of Way on American Way  
Date: October 24, 2016 
 
Attached for further handling and submittal to City Council is a plat and site layout which illustrates a 
portion of right of way within the segment of American Way that has not been constructed yet. This 
portion of right of way (highlighted in yellow on the site layout) was intended to be used for a 
“hammerhead” turnaround at the proposed terminus of American Way. During the public hearing for a 
variance request by the developer of the adjoining property at the October 20, 2015 City Council 
Meeting, Council expressed the desire to not construct a hammerhead at this location. As a result, the 
developer designed the terminus of American Way so that traffic can turn around through the proposed 
parking lot. This should give traffic a way to turn around, similar to the terminus of Merchants Way, and 
negates the need for the hammerhead portion of right of way. This proposed configuration should 
adequately serve the needs of the traveling public.  I have checked with the Water/Wastewater and 
Natural Gas Departments, and no utilities are present or planned to be installed in the referenced area 
to be abandoned. 

For the reasons stated above, I recommend that the City should consider formally abandoning the 
referenced portion of right of way, in accordance with O.C.G.A. § 32-7-3, and offer it to the adjoining 
property owner in accordance with O.C.G.A. § 32-7-4. 

 

CC: Jason Boyles, Director of Public Works and Engineering 
       Robert Cheshire, P.E., Deputy City Manager 
       Randy Wetmore, City Manager 

 

Attachments:  Plat, Site Layout Drawing, and Council Resolution 





RESOLUTION #2016-37: 

A RESOLUTION TO ABANDON AND DISPOSE OF A PORTION OF RIGHT OF WAY ON AMERICAN WAY 

THAT WHEREAS, OCGA §32-7-3 vests the Mayor and City Council of Statesboro authority to abandon 
and dispose of property no longer needed for public road purposes. 

WHEREAS, the property in the right of way of American Way identified as “R/W TO BE ABANDONED BY 
THE CITY OF STATESBORO, GA” shown on the attached Exhibit A, is the subject of this resolution. 

WHEREAS, a public hearing on this matter was held on November 1, 2016 before the Mayor and City 
Council; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Statesboro, Georgia as 
follows: 

Section 1.  The Mayor and City Council make the following findings of fact based on the evidence 
presented at the Public Hearing that was held on November 1, 2016. The Mayor and City Council agree 
with the City Engineer’s analysis. Due to the configuration of the proposed parking lot that is part of the 
development located at the proposed terminus of American Way, the portion of right of way identified 
as “R/W TO BE ABANDONED BY THE CITY OF STATESBORO, GA” which was intended to be used as a 
“hammerhead turnaround” will not be required.  No City utilities are present on the identified property. 
The proposed terminus of American Way will instead tie in to the proposed parking lot where traffic will 
be able to turn around. 

Section 2.  Based on the above finding of fact the Mayor and City Council finds that abandoning the 
portion of right of way identified as “R/W TO BE ABANDONED BY THE CITY OF STATESBORO, GA” shown 
on the attached Exhibit A is for the benefit of the public at large and hereby authorize the Mayor to 
execute any documents necessary to convey the City’s remaining interests in the property to the 
adjoining landowner in accordance with OCGA § 32-7-4. 

Section 3. That this Resolution shall be and remain effective from and after its date of adoption. 

Adopted this 1st day of November, 2016. 

CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 

 

By:  ________________________                         Attest:  ______________________      
           Jan J. Moore, Mayor      Sue Starling, City Clerk                                                 



missy_hagan
Typewritten Text

missy_hagan
Typewritten Text

missy_hagan
Typewritten Text

missy_hagan
Typewritten Text

missy_hagan
Typewritten Text
                                   Exhibit A

missy_hagan
Typewritten Text

missy_hagan
Typewritten Text

missy_hagan
Typewritten Text

missy_hagan
Typewritten Text

missy_hagan
Typewritten Text

missy_hagan
Typewritten Text

missy_hagan
Typewritten Text

missy_hagan
Typewritten Text

missy_hagan
Typewritten Text

missy_hagan
Typewritten Text



RESOLUTION #2016-38:  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE OPENING OF A 
SEPARATE BANK ACCOUNT FOR THE 2016 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

BLOCK GRANT 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Council accepted the award of the 2016 Community 
Development Block Grant; and 
 
 WHEREAS, upon the acceptance of this grant, it is required that the recipient 
establish a separate bank account, that may not be an interest-bearing account;  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the 
City of Statesboro, Georgia this 1st day of November, 2016 that the City Manager and 
Director of Finance are hereby authorized and directed to open a new bank account at 
BB&T for the City of Statesboro’s 2016 Community Development Block Grant. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that any Resolution or parts of a Resolution in 
conflict herewith are hereby rescinded. 
 
            City of Statesboro, Georgia 
  
 ___________________________ 
 Jan J. Moore, Mayor          
       
 
 ___________________________ 
 Sue Starling, City Clerk 
 



RESOULTION 2016-39: A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE JOB  
POSITION CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION PLAN 

  
 

 
 THAT WHEREAS, it is essential to have qualified municipal employees in order 
to provide reliable services to the citizens of Statesboro; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to accomplish this the Mayor and City Council previously 
have adopted a new Job Position Classification and Compensation Plan on April 5th, 
2016; and  
 WHEREAS, the City Manager has made a recommendation to reclassify an 
Administrative Assistant position, and create a Keep Statesboro-Bulloch Beautiful 
Coordinator position; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City 
of Statesboro, Georgia in regular session assembled this 1st day of November, 2016 as 
follows: 
 
 Section 1.  That the Job Position Classification and Compensation Plan, which 
includes a list of job titles and pay grades; a pay grade and range assignments; and 
written job descriptions for each position with City government, previously adopted on 
April 5th, 2016, and as subsequently amended, is hereby further amended as follows: 
 

• That the City Manager Department is reclassifying the Administrative Assistant 
position classification is hereby amended by reclassifying the position to an 
Executive Assistant at the pay grade 110; Job description attached; 
 

• That the Planning & Development Department is creating the position 
classification of Keep Statesboro-Bulloch Beautiful Coordinator at the pay grade 
of 107; Job description attached;  

 
Section 2.  That this Resolution shall be and remain in full force and effect from  

and after its date of adoption. 
 
 Passed and adopted this 1st day of November  2016. 
 
 CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
  
 



 By: ____________________________ 
                  Jan J. Moore, Mayor 
 
 
 Attest: __________________________ 
                          Sue Starling, City Clerk 



City of Statesboro, GA    
JOB DESCRIPTION                             
 
 
To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform the essential job functions satisfactorily.  
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the primary job functions 
herein described.  Since every duty associated with this position may not be described herein, employees may be 
required to perform duties not specifically spelled out in the job description, but which may be reasonably considered 
to be incidental in the performing of their duties just as though they were actually written out in this job description.  

Executive Assistant 

Department: City Manager  

Pay Grade:  110 

FLSA Status:  Non-Exempt 

 
JOB SUMMARY 
 
The Executive Assistant is responsible for providing highly responsible administrative support to 
Administration, including the City Manager, the Deputy City Manager, the City Attorney and 
Director of Human Resources. This position is distinguished by the high level complexity of 
assignments and broad scope of responsibility working with sensitive and confidential matters. 
Assignments require independent judgment and involve interactions with executive 
management, department heads, elected officials and citizens. 

 
ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS: 
 
 

• Provides executive level support to the City Manager, Deputy City Manager, City 
Attorney & Director of Human Resources in order to facilitate daily operations of 
Administration; 

• Prepare reports and provides verbal and written correspondence on behalf of the City 
Manager, the Deputy City Manager, the City Attorney and Director of Human Resources 
dealing with issues and subject matter in ways that frequently require considerable 
sensitivity, discretion, strong sense of urgency, judgment, or negotiation in replying to 
inquiries, and/or presenting or requesting information; 

• Manages the City Manager, Deputy City Manager, City Attorney and Director of Human 
Resources’ schedules, travel arrangements and the coordination of meetings and 
events; 

• Prepares specialized investigative and analytical work in researching administrative 
systems, policies and procedures, ordinances related to City and department operations 
for use in policy development and evaluation of existing programs and initiatives; 

• Analyzes, interprets and prepares oral and written reports and presentations on research 
findings; 



Executive Assistant  Page 2 

 
 

City of Statesboro, GA   Executive Assistant Prepared: 11/1/16 

• Coordinates the work of city committees and ensures all resulting work and information 
is accurately and expediently communicated to applicable persons, groups, or agencies; 

• Builds effective working relationships with Elected Officials, City Leaders, Department 
Heads, Community Representatives and other City staff; 

• Responds to calls from the public by finding answers to questions and/or referring 
queries to appropriate department or City employee; follows-up to ensure issue has 
been appropriately addressed; 

• Assists City Manager, Deputy City Manager and administration staff with strategic 
planning and issues relating to specific departments; 

• Ensures accurate and timely information flow between the City Manager, the Deputy City 
Manager, administration staff, Elected Officials and other City departments; 

• May represent Administration at community meetings to take minutes, analyze needs, 
listen and respond to specific concerns, identify possible solutions, conduct feasibility or 
impact analysis; 

• Assists with planning, coordinating and monitoring of new programs, existing programs 
or special projects initiated by City Leaders; 

• Communicates and coordinates regularly with departments to maximize the 
effectiveness and efficiency of interdepartmental operations and activities; 

• Coordinate and direct office services such as records, and monitoring annual budgets, 
including tracking all expenses, justifying monthly budget reports, preparing purchase 
orders, requisitions, invoices, and quotes for supplies and equipment as necessary; 

• Review operating practices and procedures to determine whether improvements can be 
made in areas such as work flow, reporting procedures, office organization; 

• Interpret administrative and operating policies and procedures for employees; 
• Serves as support to HR staff; 
• Performs other assigned duties;  

 
MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS TO PERFORM WORK:  
 

• Associates Degree in Business or related field;  
• Three (3) years of experience in administrative office management, to include excellent 

written and oral communications skills and experience with confidential and highly 
sensitive materials; 

• Or any equivalent combination of education, training, and experience;  
• Valid State of Georgia Driver’s License. 

 
 

PREFERRED REQUIREMENTS TO PERFORM WORK:  
 

• Bachelor’s degree in business or related field; 
• Experience providing high level support to senior leadership; 
• Notary Public certification;  

 
 
Knowledge, Skills and Abilities:  
 

• Knowledge of modern c-level executive office etiquette, practices and procedures; 
• Knowledge of basic bookkeeping and mathematics; 
• Knowledge of Microsoft Office Suite;  
• Skilled in the use of small office equipment, including copy machines or multi-telephone 

systems; 
• Skilled in using computers for data entry; 



Executive Assistant  Page 3 

 
 

City of Statesboro, GA   Executive Assistant Prepared: 11/1/16 

• Skilled in using computers for word processing and/or accounting purposes;  
• Advanced Skills in Microsoft PowerPoint and Excel; 
• Skilled to deal tactfully with people and resolve conflicts; 
• Skilled to exercise resourcefulness in addressing problems; 
• Ability to learn city policies and ordinances; 
• Ability to learn department policies and procedures; 
• Ability to maintain a professional demeanor and an orientation towards customer 

service; 
• Ability  to work in a team environment under stressful conditions; 
• Ability to explain complex problems and situations in an understandable manner; 
• Ability to present information clearly and in an interesting manner, both verbally and in 

writing, for various audiences; 
• Ability to listen well and communicate effectively orally and in writing with the public and 

employees having varied educational backgrounds and values in face-to-face, one-on-
one settings, in group settings, email and using a telephone; 

• Ability to form a high level of trust with members of the Council, Department Heads and 
top management staff; 

• Ability to approach tasks and activities in a flexible manner; 
• Ability to work independently and perform tasks involving numerous details; 
• Ability to communicate orally in the English language with customers, clients, and the 

public in face-to-face, one-on-one settings, in group settings, and using a telephone; 
• Ability to produce written documents in the English language with clearly-organized 

thoughts with proper sentence construction, punctuation, and grammar; 
• Ability to develop creative solutions to complex problems; 
• Ability to prepare and present accurate and reliable reports containing finds and 

recommendations; 
• Ability to quickly learn and put to use new skills and knowledge brought about by rapidly 

changing information and/or technology; 
• Ability to perform a wide variety of duties and responsibilities with accuracy and speed 

under the pressure of time-sensitive deadlines; 
• Ability to demonstrate integrity, ingenuity and inventiveness in the performance of 

assigned tasks; 
• Ability to Operate a motor vehicle; 
• Ability operate a personal computer using program applications appropriate to assigned 

duties; 
 
 

PHYSICAL DEMANDS: 
 
The work is typically performed while sitting at a desk or table, with intermittent standing or 
stooping. The employee must occasionally lift light objects. The employee must occasionally go 
outdoors for some events and activities (i.e. running city events etc.)  
 
WORK ENVIRONMENT:  
 
The work is typically performed in an office 
 
 
 

The City has the right to revise this position description at any time, and does not represent in 
any way a contract of employment. 

 



Executive Assistant  Page 4 

 
 

City of Statesboro, GA   Executive Assistant Prepared: 11/1/16 

 
 
 
_____________________________________________   ____________________________________ 
Employee Signature                                                Date 
 
 
 
_______________________________   ________________________ 
Supervisor (or HR) Signature     Date  
 
 
 



City of Statesboro, GA    
JOB DESCRIPTION                             
 
 
To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform the essential job functions satisfactorily.  
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the primary job functions 
herein described.  Since every duty associated with this position may not be described herein, employees may be 
required to perform duties not specifically spelled out in the job description, but which may be reasonably considered 
to be incidental in the performing of their duties just as though they were actually written out in this job description.  

Keep Statesboro-Bulloch Beautiful Coordinator 

Department: Planning & Development  

Pay Grade:  107   

FLSA Status:  Non-Exempt 

 
JOB SUMMARY 
 

The Keep Statesboro-Bulloch Beautiful Coordinator is responsible for administering and 
coordinating all programs, financial, public relations, fundraising, and volunteer or personnel 
activities for the organization and is responsible for the administrative affairs of Keep 
Statesboro-Bulloch Beautiful. This is a part-time position and reports to the Director of 
Planning & Development.  

 
 
ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS: 
 
• Oversee grassroots community program to promote litter prevention, beautification,  

community involvement and solid waste minimization and manage the day-to-day 
operations of the organization. 

• Maintain and train Advisory Board for continued operation of non-profit organization. 
• Assist in the development and implementation of strategic plans. 
• Develop relationships with government agencies, school districts, businesses, civic  
      organizations, and media in order to encourage participation in community events. 
• Represent the organization and its committees at meetings, forums and workshops. 
• Develop and interpret policies and procedures for programs and events. 
• Develop programs for public awareness, fund development, education, and special  
       events.  
• Oversee the administration of the annual budget including grants and contracts. 
• Responsible for all aspects of human resources including payroll and benefits of 

employees. 
• Coordinate and promote relevant Keep America Beautiful programs. 
• Prepare annual and semi-annual reports to maintain certification in local, state and 

national programs including conducting annual cost/benefit analysis and litter index. 



Keep Statesboro-Bulloch Beautiful Coordinator   Page 2 

 
 

City of Statesboro, GA   Planning & Development Specialist Prepared: 3/31/16 

• Maintain knowledge of and relationships with industries and associations to be responsive 
to emerging trends that impact the organization. 

• Perform other duties as assigned. 
 
MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS TO PERFORM WORK:  
 

• Associate’s degree in business administration or a closely related field; 
• Two (2) years of experience in a related field; 
• Or any equivalent training, education, and/or experience; and   
• Valid State of Georgia Driver’s License. 

 
Knowledge, Skills and Abilities:  
 

• Knowledge of principles, practices, methods and equipment applicable to modern solid 
waste management; thorough knowledge of applicable federal, state, and local policies, 
laws, and regulations affecting solid waste activities. 

• Knowledge of current state and local laws and programs focused on litter, community 
beautification, community forestry and waste reduction.  

• Knowledge of or ability to learn the department’s rules, regulations, policies, and 
procedures; 

• Knowledge of or ability to learn and interpret applicable codes and ordinances of the 
City, especially the zoning ordinance; 

• Knowledge of modern office practices, procedures, and equipment; 
• Knowledge of brochure or newsletter production; 
• Knowledge of website postings; 
• Skilled in using computers for data entry; 
• Skilled in using computers for word processing and/or accounting purposes; 
• Ability to establish effective working relationships with other City employees, City 

officials, customers, and the general public; 
• Ability to independently develop and maintain a schedule of projects; 
• Ability to understand and follow complex oral and written instructions; 
• Ability to process information, applications and forms requiring accuracy, thoroughness, 

timeliness, and attention to detail; 
• Ability to meet and deal tactfully and courteously with property owners, citizens, 

developers, builders, City officials, fellow staff, and the public; 
• Ability to drive and operate assigned vehicles in a safe and efficient manner; 
• Ability to work independently under general supervision; 
• ability to prepare professional correspondence, reports, grant filings, and public 

information releases; 
• Ability to produce brochures, newsletters, websites, presentations, and reports that are 

professional in appearance and include a variety of written materials, pictures, charts, 
graphs, and maps; 

• Skilled in the use small office equipment, including copy machines or multi-line 
telephone systems; 

• Ability to maintain a professional demeanor and an orientation towards customer 
service; 

• Ability to supervise, organize, and communicate effectively; 
• Ability to maintain constructive and cooperative working relationships with others; and 
• Ability to cooperate with fellow employees as a team member. 

 



Keep Statesboro-Bulloch Beautiful Coordinator   Page 3 

 
 

City of Statesboro, GA   Planning & Development Specialist Prepared: 3/31/16 

PHYSICAL DEMANDS & WORK ENVIRONMENT: 
 
The work is sometimes performed in an office; however, a portion of the day may be spent 
outdoors. 
 
WORK ENVIRONMENT:  
  
The work is typically performed while sitting at a desk and table, inside an office; however, a 
portion of the day may be spent outdoors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The City has the right to revise this position description at any time, and does not represent in 
any way a contract of employment. 

 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________   ____________________________________ 
Employee Signature                                                Date 
 
 
 
_______________________________   ________________________ 
Supervisor (or HR) Signature     Date  
 
 
 


















	11-01-2016 Council Agenda
	10-18-2016 Council minutes
	10-25-2016 Called Council minutes
	10-2016-11 American Way right of way abandonment memo (1)
	10-2016-12 site layout
	10-2016-37-13 American Way rw segment abandonment resolution
	11-2016-14  Abandonment Plat Exhibit A (10-03-16) (1) (1)
	11-2016-38 Resolution CDBG BANK
	11-2016-39 Resolution Executive Assistant - KSBB Coordinator Resolution
	11-2016 Executive Assistant job description
	11-2016 Keep Statesboro-Bulloch Beautiful Coordinator
	11-2016 Rec. Electrical Lime System
	11-2016 Aqua-Aerobic Rec.



